INITED NATIONS GEERAL ===
: A/CONF.2/SR.22
’ 26 November 1951

ENGLISH

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH AND
FRENCH

I’ . Dual Distribution -

CONFERENCE OF PLENIPOTENTIARIES ON THE STATUS OF
REFUGEES AND STATELESS PERSQNS

SUMMARY RECCRD OF THE TWENTY-SECOND MEETING

held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Monday, 16 July 1951, at 10 a.m.

CONTENTS: . ) pages

Consideration of the draft Covention on the

Status of Refugees (item 5(a) of the agenda) L - 20
(A/CONF.2/1 and Corr.l, A/CONF.2/5 and Corr.l)

(continued):

(1) Article LO - Notifications by the
P Secretary-General

(ii) Article 1 - Definition of the term #refugee’

(A/CONF,2/9, A/CONF.2/13, A/CONF,.2/16,
A/CONF.2/17, A/CONF.2/27, A/CONF.2/73,
A/CORF.2/7h, A/CONF.2/75, A/CONF.2/76,
A/CONF,2/77, A/CONF,2/78) resuned
from the twenty-first meeting)




A/CONF,

page 2

2/5R.22

Present:

President:

Members:

Australia
Austria
Belgium
Brazil
Canada
Columbia
Denmark
Federal Republic of Germany
France
reece
Iraq
Israel
Italy °*
Monaco
Netherlands
Norway

Sweden

Switzerland (and Liechtenstein)

Turkey

United Kingdom of Great Britain

and Northern Ireland
United States of fmerica
Venezuela

Yugoslavia

Observers

Iran

Mr. LARSEN

Mr. SHAW

Mr, FRITZER

Mr, HERMENT

Mr., de OLIVEIRA

Mr, CHANCE

Mr. GIRALDO-JARAMILLO
Mr, HOEG

Mr, von TRUTZSCHLER
Mr. ROCHEFORT

e A AXFARTRTT 7
Ll o PAMD¢A¢ L IS TP

Mr, Al PACHACHI
Mr. ROBINSON

" Mr. del DRAGO

Mr, SOLAMITO

Baron van BOETZELAER
Mr, ANKE%

Mr, PETREN

Mr. SCHURCH

Mr. MIRAS

Mr, HOLRE
Mr., WARREN
Mr, MONTOYA
Mr, MAKTEDO

Mr, KAFAT



Hi-h commissioner for Refugees

Representatives of specialized agencies and
of other inter-pgovermmental organizationst

International Refugee Organization

~ Couneil of Europe

4/CONF.2/5R,22
page 3

My, van HEUVEN GOEDHART

Mr. SCHNITZER
Mr, TALIANI de MARCHIO

14

Reprecentatives of non-governmental organizations:

Category A

International Confederation of Free

Trade Unions

Category B and Register

Caritas Internationalis

Catholic International Union for

Sqcial Service

Commission of the Churches on

International Affairs

Consultative Council of Jewish

Organizations

Co-ordinating Board of Jewish

Organizations

International Union of Catholic

Women's Leagues

Standing Conference of Veluntary

hgencies

World Jewish Congress

Secretariat:

Mr. Humphrey
Miss Kitchen

Miss SENDER
Mr. BRAUN

Mr, METTERNICH
Miss de IOMER

Mr. REES

Mr. MEYROWITZ
Mr. WARBURG
Miss de ROMER

Mr. REES
Mr, RIEGNER

Executive Secretary

Deputy Executive Secretary



A/CONF,2/SR,22
page 4

CONSIDERATION OF THE DRAFT CONVENTION ON THE STATUS OF REFUGEES (item 5(a) of the
agenda) (A/CONF.2/1 and Corr.l, A/CONF,2/5 and Corr.l) (continued):

(1) Article 40 - Notifications by the Secretary-General

Baron van BOETZELAER (Netherlands) pointed out that article 40 provided
that the suthentic texts of the Convention should be drawn up in five languages,
namely, the five official languages of the United Netions, That was the
traditional practice of organs drafting instruments under the auspices of the
United Nations, but in the present {nstrnce there would be certain practical
difficulties in follrwing it, and the Conference, as an assembly of plenipoten-
tisries, wes at liberty to depart from the usual procedure. '

In thet connexion, he drew attention to the comparable clause in the Geneva
Convention of 12 August, 1949, for ‘the Ameliorstion of the Condition of the
wounded ~nd Sick in Armed Forces in the Field, That clsuse read:

nprticle 55

nThe present COnveniion is established in FEnclish and French.
Both texts sre ecually authentic, . )

uThe Swiss Federal Council shall arringe for official trans-

lation of the Convention to be made in the Russisn ~nd Spanish

languagest,

He felt that the Conference should consider dr-fting the Convention relating
to the St-tus of Refugees in English and French, both texts being equally
authentic, and thut the Secret>ri:t should =rronge for its translation into
Chinese, Russisn ond Spanish. He was prepared to introduce = formal amendment
%o article 40 to that effect if necess ry.

The PRESIDENT suggested thet the Conference should discuss the
substance of the Netherlinds smendmeni without w2iting for the written text to
be circulated,

Mr. ANKER (Norway) wondered whether the Secretariat could supply an}
inform~tion on the point, H-d the Spenish, Russi+n and Chinese texts of the
dr-ft Convention clre-dy been prep~red? b



A/CONF2/SRe22
page 5

[

. " The EXECUTIVE SECRETARY replied that the Secretariat had been working
on the translation of the text on the basis of the original draft and of the
amendmen%s already -adopted. " The Seeretariat could prepare the final text in the
various languages only after the Style Committee had decided on ite actua.} wording.

The Netherlands amendment to article 4O was adopted by 19 votes to none,

with 4 abstentions.

The PRESIDENT expressed thanks; on behalf of the Conference, to the
Spanish-speaking representatives for their self-abnegation and for the genercus
way in vhich they were facilitating the work of the Confaerence,

He suggested that coﬁsideration of the remainder of article 40 should be
deferred. )

It was so agreed.

(ii) Article 1 - Definition of the term npefugee® (A/CONF.2/9, A/CONF ,2/13,
A/CONF,2/16, A/CONF,2/17, 4/CONF,2/27, A/CONF.2/73, A/CONF o2/,
A/CONF.2/75, &/CONF.2/76, 4/CONF +2/77, A/CONF,2/78) (resumed frem the
twenty-first meeting)

Mr, MIRaS (Turkey) said that the dafinition appearing in article 1 of
the present text of the draft Convention was mot the one that Turkey would have
liked to see there. The Turkish point of view had alrsady been explained on
various occasions, in particular at the fifth session of the General Assembly.
Turkey would, however, accept the present definition, which was a campramise
‘reached with much difficulty. ’

Turkey was anxious to sign the Convention, The big effort she wae mzking
. 8t the moment to receive hundreds of thousands of refugees, of Turkish origin,
from Bulgaria, driven from thely éenturies-old homes, had not lessened her

‘solicitude for other categories of refugees.

His delegation wished the Convention to be signed by as many States as
possible and would not be opposed to suggestions leading to that goal, But the
Turkish Government wou.d have to study carefully any change in the present
sompromise text which suvstantially altered the structure of the Convention.



A/CONF ,2/SR,22
page 6

Mr. ROBINSON (Israel) said that, since paragraphs A and C of
article 1 were closely related, he would deal with them together,

Of the three facto: 3 governing the definition of the term "refugee",
practically no attention had been paid to the substantive requirements for
qualification as a refugee. On the other hand, sufficient attention had been
given to the temporal and geographical factors. But, whereas there appeared to
be general agreement regarding the limitation of the definition in time, it was

otherwise with the geozraphical criterion.

it three meetings the geographical issue had been discussed exhaustively,
The "Europeans" had confronted the "universalists" in an‘exciting and enlightening
debate, which had, howerer, in his opinion, been largely academic. The
experience of history suggested that it would make 1little difference whether or
not the words "in Europe" were included in sub-paragraph (2). He considered
that the word "events" had originally been included in that sub-paragraph in an
attempt to designate, in a somewhat camouflaged manner, the new categorics of
post-war refugees that had emerged as a result of the political changes which had
supervened in parts of ceriral and eastern Europe, He recalled the fact that
those refugees had been termed "neo-refugees” in one of the first drafts of the
Convention, in order to distinguish them from the traditional categories of

internationally protected refugees referred to in sub-paragraph (1) of paragraph 4

The implications of omitting the words "in Europe" depended on how the facts
were interpreted and evaluateds The text of sub-paragraph (2) obviously did
not refer to refugees from naturel disasters, for it was difficult to imagine
that fires, floods, earthquskes or vOlcanic eruptions, for instance,
differentiated between their victims on the grounds of race, religion or
political opinion. Nor did that text cover 2ll man-made events. There was nd

provision, for example, for refugees fleeing from hostilities unless they were
otherwise covered by article 1 of the Convention.
The "universalists" had fuiled to specify from what parts of the world,

other than Europe, candidates for the status of refugee might come, The United
States representative, who had made an othorwise exhaustive survey of the position



A/CONF 42/SR 22
page 7

of refugees throughout the world, had overlooked one country, Israel, vhich in
the last eighteen years, first as the Jewlsh National Home and subsequently as
the State of Isrzel, had absorbed more than three-quarters of a million refugees
from central Europe and the Near East. It was easy to imagine what 2 burden
that mass of pecple would have been for the international community had not
Iarsel undertaken responsibility for their rehabilitation amd resettlement.

The dramatic saga of operations "Magic Carpet" and "Cyrus", which in a
short time had brought some 200,000 refugees to Isracl from Yemen, Libya and
Iraq, had caught the imagination of the world, But those refugees had never
required international sssistance or protection, Morsover, undep the Israsli
fepatriation law, every Jew automatically became a citizen of Israel .from the
moment of his arrival on Israeli territory, '

In only one area of the world outside Europe, namely, China, had there been
& change of regime giving rise before 1 Jamuary 1951 to e movement of refugees.
For reasons which must be well known to the Chiang Kel Shek regime the present
representatives of China in the United Nations did not consider that to be a
problem worthy of examination, as was eloquently demonstrated by the abgence

from the present Conference of a Chinese delegation. -

The case of Chinese refugecs now fleeing from the People's Republic of
China was unique in history. They had a Government. of their own, still
recognized by many States, with a seat in the United Nations, and able to provide

refuge in Formosa to those who sougﬁt asylum there,

Not everyone who considered himself a refugee, or who was so considered by
others, even by United Nations organs, was a refugee under the terms of the
Convention, To qualify as a refugee a person must satisfy the following
requirements: first, his piace of residence must be outside the country of
his nationality or of his habitual residence; secondly, he must be in that place
of residence because of a well-founded fear cf persecution for reasons specified
in article 1 of the draft Convention; and thirdly, he must be unable or
unwilling to avail himself of the protection of his country of nationality or,
having no nationality, he must be unwilling to return to the country of his
habitual residence,



_A/CONF ,2/5R,22
_page 8

He submitted that Chinese refugees could not be considered as satisfying the
jast of those requirements, except in the eyes of those countries whi_ch had
reeognized the new regime, the great majority of which were asiatic, It was
_therefare obvious that the difference between the "universalist® and "European®
positions was insignificant, since it referred to small numbers of Chinese in a
very few States. Thus, for the purposes of the Convention, there were practically

no refugees in the world other than those coming fram Europe. The Iaraeli ,
delegztion was therefore not perturbed by the suggestion that the words "in
Europe" should be reinstated in the definition. '

He felt that paragraph € was one of the most confusing sections of artiele 1,
It was an innovation introduced by the General Assembly; neither the ad hog
Committee nor the Econamic and Social Council was respoﬁsible for it, In an
attempt to disguise practical 'situations under a vell of abstract notions an
unhappy formula had been devised. is the United States representative had
observed, if the formula were left unchanged it would automatically exclude from
the scope of article 1 all the refugees within the purview of the High
Commissioner for Refugees. The reason for that anomzlous situstion was a fear
of calling things by their right names. There were only two categories of
refugees catered fo’r by the United Nations as an international organization under
resolutions of the General assembly: the Arab refugees fram Palestine under

various resolutions, the most recent of which were resolution 393 (V) of
2 December, 1950, and resolution 394 (V) of 14 Deeember, 1950; and the Korean

refugees under resolution 410 (V) of 1 December, 1950,

The fundamental question, therefore, was whether the Palestinian or Korean
refugees .could satisfy the requirements of sub-paragraph {(2) of paragraph A, In
view of thé analysis which he had just made it was hardly necessary to answer the
question, That did not imply th:t he was opposed to the Arab refugees being
protected by the High Comaissioner if the States concerned so'desired, but that
was quite a different matter from the one under consideration.

Three courses wer.e open to the Conference: it could simply accept the French
amendment (A/CONF.2/75) ard reinstatc the words "in Europe® in artiele 1; it
eould adopt the French cmendment and, at the same time, lay more stress than



A/CONF ¢2/SR 422
page 9

pitherto on paragraph F of article 1; or it could lay the Convention open to

reservations in respect of the origin of refugees. With regard to the last
course, he pointed out that the Swiss proposal put forward at the twentieth
meeting, while ingenious, had legal and moral disadventages. The legal
disadvantage was that it would result in an instrument with different applications
ratione originis for different Contrecting States, The moral disadvantege was
that any reservation, particulerly one of a restrictive nature, would invelve

moral implicestions for the State making it.

He thought that the words "Since 1 august 1914%, which did not appear in the
gtatute of the High Commissioner for Refugees, should be deleted from the first
sentenee of sub-paragraph (1) of paragraph A of article 1, It was possible, of
course, that the French text was not open tc the same jnterpretation as the

English,

Mr: HERMENT (Belgium) submitted, in reply to the Israeli representetive's
contention th:t there was no reason to make a distinetion between the
tuniversalist" and the “European" conceptions of the Convention, that the
Convention was intended to cover, not only existing refugees, but also those of
"the past and the future. The Belgian delegation accordingly opposed the French
amendment to artiele 1 {4/CONF.2/75).

as to the deletion of the date 1 august, 1914, from sub-paragraph (1) ot
paragraph 4, as proposed in the Belgian amendment (A/CONF 42/78), he requested that
it should be discussed later. Only the French amendment should be discussed at

the present stage.,

Mr. ROBINSON (Israel) remarked that there was little difference of
opinion between the Belgian representative and himself, except that the former
apparently failed to appreciate that only recorded and known events which had

.urred before 1 January, 1951, would have effect under article 1 as it stood.
In that connexion, he wished to point out that events that had occurred before

that date might still result in movements of refugees in years to come.



A/CONF ,2/SR 422 W
page 10 |

Mr., ROCHEFORT (France) said that when, before the second world war,

France had had to admit into her territory several hundred thousand Spanish
refugees, she would not have been able to grant the benefit of existing conventions
to that category of refugees had she been tied by an international inétrument.

She had done her best in an exceptional situation; and only later had it became
possible for her to extend to those refugees the benefits of the 1933 Convention,
It might perhaps be possible to derive a normal method of procedure from that

example, It seemed more natural for governments to extend their commitments
subsequently rather than to set out by assuming excessively wide commitments,
The formulation of reservations reétricting the Convention's scope seemed less

appropriate than making reservations the effect of which would be to widen it.

The discussions at the present Conference permitted several facts to be
established, The first was that practically all delegations were in agreemsnt
in recognizing that the Convention should apply at least to European refugees,
The second was that the terms of the definition of refugees in article 1 and of
the Convention itself as a whole in fact referred to European refugees; the
rights and duties mentioned in the draft Convention fitted in much more closely
with the social, econcmic and legal systems of Europeén countries than with those
of countries outside Europe, partiecularly those of asia. Finally, it could be
said that, while all the States represented at the Conference agreed that they
should commit themselves at least in respect of buropean refugees, a ¢ertain
nunber of Governments were equally ready to commit thenselves in respect of
refugees from countries outsidzs Europe. The widening of commitments in respect
of the latter category of refugees might create certain obstacles, not only for
France, but also for the countries of Latin America, which had already settled
ﬁhe position of refugees in their territory by bilateral agreements, However,
the differences between the various conceptions of the Convention which had come
to light should lead to the formulation of reservations widening its scope, not
to that of reservations restrieting its scope. No one, indeed, would lose thershy.
It was unquestionable that since 1914 the problem of refugees had above all been
a Buropean problem, and it was equally unquestionable that, as a result of the
last two world wars, Europe should be considered as the centre of gravity of the

problem, At the instance of men like Nansen, Europe had made great and noble



A/CONF ,2/SR 22
page 11

efforts to settle the problem of refugees in a humaniiarian way. Of all the
problems affecting refugees, that of European refugees was the most fitted to be
raised and dealt with internationally. It was also unquestionable that the
introduction of the words "in Europe" into the definition of the temm trefugeet
in the draft Convention would give to European refugees a status which all
countries could accept - one which they could later extend to refugees from
countries outside Europe. In granting such a status to European refugees, the
Convention would set an example to the world, If certain countries were ready
to go further, there was nothing to prevent them from entering reservations in
the direction of greater(libera'lisme What must at a}l costs be avoided was
that the countries most burdened by the refugee problem should be obliged to

enter reservations restricting the Conventien's general scope.

The French viewpoint should, indeed, be thoroughly discussed; France
considered that the need to enter reservations restricting the Convention's
scope would necessarily prejudice the attitude it would take towards the

Convention,

The PRESIDENT suggested that, since 3 number of delegations had been
having informal conversations on the subject at issue, the Conference might
adjourn for a short period in order to give them an opportunity of re-considering

their positions,

It v}as 80 agreed,

The meeting was suspended at 11,05 a,m. and was resumed at 11,20 a,m,

Baron van BOETZELAER (Nethcrlends) stated that he was authorized by his
Belgian, Danish, Norwegian, Swedish and Swiss colleagues to express their general
feeling of regret that the French represcntative was unable to support a
compramise text which they had prepared., The French delegation felt obliged to
enter a reservation in respect of sub-paragraph (2) of paragraph A of article 1
along the lines indicated in its amendment (4/CONF.2/75),



A/CONF.2/SR .22
page 12

His colleagues and he felt that they must uphold the decision of the General
Assembly, which, after having considered all aspects of the matter, and after
having examined a similar amendment introduced by the French delegation in the
General Assembly, had felt that the scope of the Convention should be broad,

If, in order to win the support of certain countries, the General Assembly's
decision was disregarded, many delegations would find the Cenvention difficult,
if not impossible, to accept,

The Belgian, Danish, Netherlands, Norwegian and Swedish delegations could
not vote in favour of the French amendment, but were ready to support the
compromise proposal made by the Swiss representative o the twentieth meeting
concerning the principle of restrictive reservations; "chey saw little point in the

formulation of reservations which would extend the Convention's scope. He had
been prepered to introduce an amendment gimilar in purport to the Swiss proposal

but, in view of the prevailing circumstances, he would refrain fran doing soe.

The PRESIDENT, observing that the scope of article 1 had been
discussed at very great length, suggested that when the Conference came to vote on
the amendments before it, the Yugoslav amendment (A/CONF ,2/16) should be put to.
the vote first, as it proposed the substitution of an extremely broad definition
and was furthest removed from the original text (A/CONF.2/1), The remainixig
amendments might te dealt with in the following order: the French amendment
(A/CONF.2/75); the Swedish amendments (A/CONF.2/9); the United Kingdom
amendment (A/CONF.2/27); the Austrian amendment (A/CONF.2/17); the Netherlands
amendment (A/CONF,2/73); the second Netherlands amendrent (A/CONF.2/77); the

Egyptian amendment (A/CONF,2/13); the amendment submitted by the delegation of
the Federal Republic of Germany (4/CONF.2/76); and, finally. the second United
Kingdom amendment (A/CONF.2/74).

He understood that an amendment had also been introduced by the Belgian
delegation, although it was not yet available in English, It would shortly be
circulated as document A/CONF.2/78.



A/CONF .2/SR,22 |
page 13 ‘

Mr, ROCHEFORT (France) thought that a vote should first be taken on the
pgyptian amendment (A/CONF,2/13).  ilthough that amendment merely modified
paragraph C of article 1, it nevertheless affected the question of the origin of
refugees, which was dealt with in paragraph A. -y

The PRESIDENT was perfectly willing to consider alternative suggestions
for the order of voting. The order he had proposed was based on that of the
provisions of article 1. The Egyptian amendment could be put to the vote
earlier, but certain delegations might find it difficult to take a final position
on it before a decision had been reached on sub-paragraph (1) of paragraph A.
Furthermore, some representatives felt that the general discussion had so far been
concentrated on paragraph A of article 1, whereas paragraph C had been examined
only cursorily in connexion with paragraph A. He would personzlly be reluctant
to put the Egyptian amendment to the vote forthwith, in view of the fact that its

author was absent from the present meeting,

Mr. Al PACHACHI (Iraq) announced thai he would be prepared, in the

absence of the Egyptian representative, to defend his amendment ,

Mr. HOARE (United Kingdom) agreed with the President that in voting on
the amendments the order of the provisions of article 1 should be followed. For
example, if the French amendxnént , which proposed the insertion of the words "in
Europe" after the words "As a result of events occurring", were adopted, the

Egyptian amendment would become superfluous,

He believed, however, that the general discussion had not yet been exhausted,
He hoped that the Conference would not proceed to vote at the risk of excluding
proposals which had not yet been submitted in final form, such a8 that made by the

Swiss representative at the tweubicth woctinge

' Mr, ROCHEFORT (France) supported the United Kingdom representative,
The attitude of the French delegation was the result of the surprise it had felt
on learning of the President's apparent intention of closing the discussion on
article 1, Before the order of voting on the various amendments was settled,

the discussion of the general principle should be completed.



A/CONF ,2/5R ,22
page 14

The French Govermment's attitude, as defined in the French amendment

(4/CONF .2/75), entailed the possibility of reservations being entered to
article 1 which would extend the scope of the Convention as a whole,

The PRESIDENT assured the United Kingdom representative that he was
not pressing the Conference to begin voting prematurely; he had eimply wished to
indicate in advance the order in which the various amendments would be voted on,
He agreed that certain general considerations had atill to be thrashed ouv,

Mr. ROBINSON (Isracl) asked whether the Swedish w»epresentative could
agree to consideration of the second of his amendments » which dealt with what
was sometimes known as the "none-personal convenience® clause, being deforred
until sub-paragraph (5) of paragraph B, which dealt with the same subject, was
taken up, ' :

”
Mr. PETREN (Sweden) said that he could,

Mr, ANKER (Norway) shared the views expressed by the Netherlande
representative on the French smendment (A/CONF,2/75). It would be remembered
that the original text of article 1 had been adopted by 41 votes tc 5, with 10
abstentions, by the General Assembly at its fifth session, which would seem to
indicate that most govermments were in favour of making the Convention as broadly .
applicable as possible, so as to ensure that it covered refugees from all parts
of the world, He hed listened with interest and respect td the arguments
advanced by the French representative, and was well aware how much France ha.q
dene to assist refugees. None the less, he was constrained to question the
validity of the argument that, apart from the victims of events in Palestine and
Korea, the problem of refugces was a European one, It could hardly have been
forgotten that before the second world war there had been not a few Greek and
Armenian refugees from aAsia Minor., He himself had visited many camps and settle-
ments for such persons in Syria and the Lebanonr, both of which had at that t.ime‘
been under French Mandate,



4/CONF.2/SRe22
page 15

48 the Netherlands repr.esentative had said, it would be more logical to
extend the provisions of article 1 to all refugees, regardless of their gountry of
origin, and to enable governments to enter reservations restricting. thelr
application of the Convention to persons coming from specific areas.  That would
be preferable to restricting the application of the Convention in the way
proposed by the French representative, ~alt~hough he realised that even if the lstter
course were adopted it would alwsys be 'open to any government to extend the scope
of the Convention to refugees not covered by its provisions, even without making &
specific reservation to that effect: The Conforence should attempt to reconcile
the views of the majority in the General assembly - as expressed in the original
text - with the wishes of the French Govermment by amending article 36 so as to
ensble States to make restrictive reservations in respect of article 1.

Mr, ROCHEFORT (France) thought that - as the Israeli reprssentativels
statement had implied - the definition of the term "refugee" as at present
incorporated in article 1 was based on the-assumption of a divided world. If,
however, it was considered thet a single text should cover both refugees from
western Europe seeking asylum in the countries beyond the "Iron Curtain" and
refugees from the letter countries seeking asylum in western Europe, he wondered
what the moral implicrtions of such a text wauld be. The problem of refugees
could not be treated in the abstract, but, on the contrary, must be considered in
the 1ight of historical facts. In laying down the definition of the term
"refugee"‘, account had hitherto always been taken of the fact that the refugees
rincipally involved had originated from a certein part of the world; thus, such
a definition was based on historieal facts, any attempt to impért a2 universal
character to the text would be tantamount to making it an "Open Sesame'.

The definition of the term "refugee" in the Constitution of the International
Refugee Organization had given rise to certain difficulties, since it related
solely to refugees who hed acquired the status of refugee as aresult of acts of
war, That text had had to be adapted to include a new category of refugees.

If the text were now to be applied to refugees coming from all parts of the world,
violence would be done to those very historical considerations whil:h underlay and
inspired the Conventiom



A/CONF.2/5R,22
page 16

Mr. HERMENT (Belgium) pointed out thst it wes not a matter of the.
protection given %o refugees by the United Nations, but bf the protection given
by Contracting States to refugess in their territory. If the countries which
the French representative clearly had in mind signed the Convention, it would
matter little, in practice, whether or not they accorded to any refugees from
western European countries who might seek asylum on their territories the benefits

of ths provisions of the Convention,

Mr, WARREN (United States of america) said that, as the discussion
gcemed to have taken a critical turn, he felt bound, albsit wit.h' reluctance,
to intervene in order to reply to those vho had argued that to attempt to make
any change in the original text of article 1 would be cohtrary to the
jntentions of the General issembly. The Conference was free to accept, to alter
or to reject the text of article 1, as could be seen from the terms of General
assenbly resolution 429 (V), paragraph 2 of which read as follows:

"Recammends to governments participiting in the conference to take
into consideration the draft Convention submitted by the Economic
and Social Council and, in particular, the text of the definition
of the term 'refugee! as set forth in the annex hereto ;"'

Therec was nothing surprising in the fact that, when the question of the
definition alone had bsen under consideration by the General assembly by some
sixty States, a very liberal approach should have been adopted, which had
naturally resulted in the widest possible definition. It was, however, one
thing to frame a definition in the desire to assist all refugees irrespective of
their country of origih, and quite another to adjust that definition to the
remeining provisions of the Convention, which the General nesembly had not
considered in the light of its own definition, Had it done so, many d elegations
would without doubt have hnd second thoughts about article l. If, vhen
considering the articles other than article 1, the Conference had been aware
that the Convention was to apply to all refugees without distinction, it would
undoubtedly have proceeded differently. his it was, the provisions so far |
agreed upon had been adapted specifically for applic~tion to refugees from

European countries.



i/CONF ,2/5R .22
page 17

Mr. HERMENT (Belgium), referring to the camsents of the Norwegian
representative, asked the French representative whether he considered that the
insertion in sub-paragraph (2) of paragreph i+ of the words "in Europe" would-
mean that armenian refugees would lose the status at present conferred on them by

existing Conventions,

Mr, ROCHEFORT (France) replied that the refugees in question were
completely covered by sub-paragraph (1) of paragraph h.

Mr, HERMENT (Belgium) admitted that that was true so far as concerned
the refugees in respect of whom & decision had already been taken, but what
would happen to the refugees in respect of whom no decision had yet been teaken?
That problem might arise in the case of refugees who had not yet claimed the
benefit of previous conventions. The insertion in sub-paragraph (2) of
par~graph A of the words "in Europe" would deprive thet category of refugses of
the benefit of the draft Convention at present being considered by the

Sonferences,

Mr., ROCHEFORT (France) thought that the High Commissioner for Refugees
micht perhaps give his opinion concerning the situation of the refugees to whom
the Belgion reprusentative had referred; incidentally, thet state of affairs
had persisted for some thirty years, so that the point raised by the Belgian

representative secmed to be entirely academic,

Mr, ven HEUVEN GOEDH.RT (United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees),
replying to the French representative, said that an Armenian presenting himself
now, for the first time, as a refugee would not be covered by the provisions of

sub-paragraph (1) of paragraph & of article 1.

The PRESIDENT suggested that there were four courses open te the
Conference: the adoption of the French emendment without any provision for
States to make reservations in respect of article 1; the adoption of a narrow
acfinition, by restricting the scope of article 1 to refugees from European

countries, and of 2 clause enabling governmente to make a reservation extending the



«/CONF .2/3R.22
page 18

applicability of the Convention to other refugees; the adoption of a broad
definition giving governments the right to make a restrictive reservation,
declaring that they would apply the Convention to refugess from Europsan
countries only; and the retention of the original text allowing for no
reservations. He feared that the last course was unlikely to find favour with

.

the Conference.

He suggested that, as the Yugosiav amendment (A/CONF.2/16) embodied . very
broed definition wnich, if adopted, would eliminate the French amendment, it

might be put to the vote immediately.

The Yugoslayv amendment was rejected by 17 votes o 1, with 5 abstentions.

Mr. ROCHEFORT (France) wished to explain his vote. He had voted
against the Yugoslav amendment becruse it seemed to be the result of theoretical
and universalist reasoning, and to represent an attempt to legislate in the

abstract while ignoring historical f2cts,

The PPESIDENT suggested that the Conference should next vote on the
French amendmen® (4/CONF2/75),

L4

M., PETREN (Sweden) said thet the French amendment involved most
delicate and vital considerations; he would accordingly suggest that further
discussion on i% be deferred until the following mecting so as to give time to

represcntatives for reflection and informal consultation.

Mr. ROCHEFORT (France) supported the Swedish repraesentative's
proposal, The French dulegstion did not wish to take advantage of the absence
of certain delaen*dris which, if presont; wemld have vnted against the French

amendment o

He would, however, emphasize the importance of the problem.' Certain
delcgations wished to place in 2 position which implied meral ccnsure
countries such as, not only France, but also the United States of america, the
Federal Reputlic of Germany, Italy, ~ustria znd sustralia, in whose territories

there were 2 large number of refugees. To support thoeir orgument, they had




i/CONF . 2/SR.22
prge 19

O
Conws

¢ the positicn of the countries which had voted an favour of a text in the
seneral assemhly, but which hod not bothered to tbake the trouble to send
representatives to the present Conference, thereby revealing their complete
isdifference to the refugee problem, By wiching tc place the States favouring
the "European" concept in a morally reprehensible position, the countries for
which the Netherlends representative had acted as spokesman were not showing much

regard for the latter's position,

The French delegation could not yet say definitely whether the French
Government would not consider that fact as preventing it from scceding to the
Convention. It should not be forgotten that France had acquired some consider-
able experience of previous conventions. That was why it would be wise to make

it possible for France to become a party to the present Convention,

Mr, HOARE (United Kingdom) supported the Swedish representative's
suggestion. He agreed with the French representative that it would be most
undesirable to *press the matter to a vote,  The United Kingdom Government was in
favour ol a broad definitiou, but it had no wish %to press such a definition on
those govermments for which it would present difficulties., If unanimous agreement
was to be reached; perhaps the bust course to follew would be thot suggested by

the Swiss representative.

He could not agrec that, by entering a restrictive reservation, governmerits
would c2ll down upon themselves zny moral obloquy.  The possibility of such a
reservaiion would in itself constitute recogrnition of what were bclicved to be
practic~l difficulties. Feservations on article 1 would refiect on the goodwill
of any State no more than would reservations on any of the otﬁer articles of the

Convention,

1f, however, the regretiable necessity should arise of having to put to the
vote the var: ous sltern-tives before the Conference, he would wish to express his
desire that any pronosal, however informal, should be discussed on its merits,
without undue importance bcing attached te the form in which it had been

priesented,



./CONF.2/SR, 22
page 20

The PRESIVENT expressed his sympathy for the motives which ad
prompted the United Kingdom representative!s remarks. It was perfectly true
tha* no member of the Conference had any desire whatsoever to misinterpret or to
censure the attitude taken by any country. 4ll were inspired by the desire to
achieve results, and he, as President, was anxious to do everything which might
fscilitate unanimous agreement. The range of opinion seemed to have been
narrowed to such an extent that it should now be possible to secure agreement

without prejudice to the view of any delegitiona

He suggested thot the most logical procedure would be to consider the

various courses open to the Conference in the order in which he had enumerated

them,

Mr. ROCHEFORT (France) szid thot a country might have its reasons
for not wishing to commit itself to making restrictive reservations, but it
could easily make reservations widening the Convoention's scope, and thus prove

itself generous, at the time of signature,

The PRESIDENT said that, although he was not an expert in the drafting
of international instruments, he would wish to suggest that one solution might
be to embody the alternitives in the text of article 1 itsclf, enabling

governments to opt for whichever clause was most acceptable to them,

The Swedish representetive!s proposal thot further consideration of the

French amendment be deferred until the next meeting was unanimously adopted.

The meeting rose at 12,45 p.me




